THE UNIVERSITY OF WESTERN ONTARIO WESTERN ARCHIVES



THE LEONARD FAMILY FONDS

AFC 64

Inventory prepared by Alison Mitchell-Reid, based on student finding aid project(s) undertaken in partial fulfillment of archives course requirements - October 2009; updated by Theresa Regnier December 2015.

WESTERN ARCHIVES AFC 64 THE LEONARD FAMILY FONDS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FONDS DESCRIPTION	4
SERIES DESCRIPTIONS and FILE LISTS	
Series 1: Leonard Family correspondence and other documents	6
Subseries 1.1: Letters to the Leonard family	
Subseries 1.2: Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard	
Subseries 1.3: Letters addressed primarily to Alice Louise Leonard	
Subseries 1.4: Other Leonard family material	
Series 2: Elijah Leonard election documents and other material	14
Series 3: Frank E. and Alice Louise (Ibbotson) Leonard correspondence and o	
documents	
Subseries 3.1: Letters to Alice Louise Leonard	19
Subseries 3.2: Frank Leonard correspondence	20
Subseries 3.3: Frank Leonard clippings and scrapbooks	
Subseries 3.4: Miscellaneous documents	
Series 4: Ibbotson Leonard records	23
Subseries 4.1: Diaries	25
Subseries 4.2: Scrapbooks	26
Subseries 4.3: Correspondence	27
Subseries 4.4: Miscellaneous documents	28
Series 5: Woodman Leonard records	30
Subseries 5.1: Diaries	
Subseries 5.2: Scrapbooks	
Subseries 5.3: Correspondence and songs	
Series 6: Photographs	
Series 7: E. Leonard and Sons business documents	
Series 8: Sarah M. (Brinton) Leonard personal documents	
Series 9: Brinton Family documents and photographs	
Appendix I: Series 2 Scrapbook listing	43

THE LEONARD FAMILY FONDS AFC 64 FONDS DESCRIPTION

Dates

1828-1952, predominant 1892-1917

Extent

1.65 m of textual records and other materialca. 2188 photographs & negatives,ca. 346 blueprints55 volumes14 maps

Biographical Sketch

The Leonard family came to London in the 1830's and has resided in London since 1840. Elijah Leonard, Jr. who came to Canada from the United States, established a successful foundry in London, and his sons and grandsons were active with this business until the 1940's. Several members of the family were actively involved in municipal politics and Elijah Leonard, Jr. was elected to the Senate in 1862. The family was also dedicated to military service, with several members of the family serving in the local militia, attending the Royal Military College of Canada (RMC), and actively serving in World War I (WWI). The Leonard family was civic-minded and well-respected, with various family members having been chosen to chair commercial foundations and charitable organizations.

Scope and Content

This fonds consists of letters, diaries, photo albums, scrapbooks, and account ledgers relating to members of the Leonard Family of London, Ontario. The fonds also include photo albums and other documents relating to the Brinton Family - principally Sarah Brinton, wife of Ibbotson Leonard.

Arrangement

The fonds is arranged into the following series:

Series 1: Leonard Family correspondence and other documents

Series 2: Elijah Leonard records

Series 3: Frank E. and Alice Louise (Ibbotson) Leonard correspondence and other documents

Series 4: Ibbotson Leonard records

Series 5: Woodman Leonard records

Series 6: Photographs

Series 7: E. Leonard and Sons business documents

Series 8: Sarah M. (Brinton) Leonard personal documents

Series 9: Brinton Family documents and photographs

Finding Aids

File and item lists are available.

Custodial History

In 1974, with the death of Ibbotson Leonard, the family's papers and personal items were given to the London auction firm, Bowley's.

Immediate Source of Acquisition

The 1974 auction at Bowley's saw the fonds divided between the University of Western Ontario's regional collection and a private collector, Mrs. E. Somerville. Upon Mrs. Somerville's death in 1976, her portion of the collection was donated by her husband, C.R. Somerville, to the University of Western Ontario. A letter in the collection file also indicates that the regional collection transferred some ephemera to the "London Public Library and Art Gallery".

Associated Material

By virtue of Elijah Leonard, Jr.'s marriage to the daughter of Elijah Woodman, and her son Frank Leonard's interest in Elijah Woodman's personal papers, this fonds is associated with the Elijah Woodman Family fonds held at the Western Archives. Please see finding aid AFC 65.

Woodman Leonard's attestation papers and copies of the war diary from April 9, 1917 (the date of his death) are available electronically through the website of Library and Archives Canada.

Transcripts of Woodman Leonard's war diaries and other material are held by the 1st Hussars Museum in London.

Source of Supplied Title

Title based on provenance of the fonds.

Conditions Governing Use

For preservation reasons, restrictions on photocopying apply to some scrapbooks and Ibbotson Leonard's degree in this fonds. Please see additional information provided within the individual series.

Series 1 Leonard family correspondence and other documents

Dates

1892-[193-?]

Extent

50 cm of textual records 5 volumes [textual material, graphic material]

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence, genealogical notes, cemetery plot plans, and other documents relating to the Leonard family as a whole.

Arrangement

When addressed to more than one family member, files of correspondence were placed in this series.

This series is arranged into the following subseries:

Subseries 1: Letters to the Leonard family

Subseries 2: Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard

Subseries 3: Letters addressed primarily to Alice Louise Leonard

Subseries 4: Other Leonard family material

Sub Series 1.1 Letters to the Leonard family

Dates

1894-1925

Extent

30 cm of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence addressed to the Leonard family generally.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to Leonard family from Alice E (Leonard) Cronyn "Icy"	1900-1904	B4699-17
Letters to the Leonard family from Woodman Leonard (U.C.C.)	1899-1900	B4699-20
Letters to the Leonard family from Woodman Leonard	1903	B4699-22
Letters to the Leonard family from Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard	1900-1904	B4699-23
Letters to the Leonard family from Frank and Alice Louise Leonard (from Europe)	1904	B4699-32
Letters to the Leonard family from Estelle Leonard (Carling)	1902-1907	B4699-29
Letters to Elaine, Louise, and Ibbotson Leonard from Naomi and Genevieve Morrison	1894	B4699-13
Letters to the Leonard family from Alice Louisa Leonard (from Europe)	1907	B4699-44

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to the Leonard family from Elaine Leonard (Schofield)	1899-1910	B4699-27
Letters to the Leonard family from Ibbotson and Sarah Leonard (from Europe)	1925	B4699-45
Ibbotson's letters from France WWI 1915-1916	1915-1916	B4700-002-1
Letters from Ibbotson to family	1917	B4700-002-2
Letters from Ibbotson in France 1917-18	1917-1918	B4700-002-3
Woodman to family 1914 (before leaving for France)	1914	B4700-002-5
Wood [Woodman] from Salisbury Plain and West Down 1914 (also troop ship)	1914	B4700-002-6
Woodman's letters home WWI	1915-1916	B4700-003-7
Letters re Woodman's death in action 1917	1917	B4700-003-8
Miscellaneous wartime correspondence	1914-1915	B4700-003-9

Sub Series 1.2 Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard

Dates

1892-1918

Extent

11 cm of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence addressed to both Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from Hyla H. Betts	1892-1902	B4699-5
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from Hugh Labatt and family	1896-1903	B4699-10
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from the Mallock family	[1901?]	B4699-11
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from Aunt Emma (Emma L. Moore?)	1897-1900	B4699-12
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from George S. Strathy	1900-1902	B4699-15
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from Frank E. Leonard	1897-1918	B4699-30
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard miscellaneous correspondents	1892-1918	B4699-35

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from Louisa (mother)	c1899-1910	B4701-001-1
Letters to Ibbotson and Woodman Leonard from Louisa (mother)	Undated	B4701-001-2

Sub Series 1.3 Letters addressed primarily to Alice Louise Leonard

Dates

[189?]-1920

Extent

5 cm of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence addressed primarily to Alice Louise Leonard but intended for the Leonard family as a whole.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to Alice, "nephews" from John S. Ibbotson	1894-1920	B4699-8
Letters to Alice ("Louisa"), Ibbotson, and Woodman Leonard from F. Louisa Ibbotson	[189-?]	B4699-9
Letters to Alice and Ibbotson Leonard from Newman W. Hoyles	1904-1908	B4699-7

Sub Series 1.4 Other Leonard family material

Dates

1889-[1936?]

Extent

- 4 cm of textual records
- 5 volumes [textual material, graphic material]
- 1 blueprint

Scope and Content

This series contains poetry, genealogical notes, cemetery plot plans, and other documents of the Leonard family.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Papers re: Leonard family plot Mt. Pleasant Cemetery and genealogy [1 blueprint]	1905-[1936?]	B4701-002-5
Alice concerts 1890-1889; Brinton plantation [sic.] [vol.]	1889-1890	B4702-001-4
In Memoriam: Charles Egbert Leonard [two copies] [vol.]	1896	B4702-001-1
E. Leonard & Son book – genealogical notes [vol.]	[193-?]	B4702-003-7
Leonard 1652-1943: Brief History of the Leonards of London Canada [vol.]	1934	B4702-001-2
Annals of the Leonard Family [vol.]	1911	B4702-001-3
H. Ibbotson auction catalogue of library	[189-?]	B4699-6
Elaine Leonard school notebook 1910	1910	B4699-28
Misc. correspondence and ephemera		B4699-001

Title	Dates	Box/File
Poem by Alice E. Leonard	[189-?]	B4701-002-3
Certificate, genealogy charts and crests for Leonard Family	1932-1935	X2400

Series 2 Elijah Leonard records

Dates

ca.1830-1894

Extent

5 cm of textual records 6 volumes [textual material, graphic material]

Biographical Sketch

Elijah Leonard, Jr. was born September 10, 1814 near Syracuse, New York, second child of Elijah Leonard, Sr. and Mary (Polly) Leonard (née Stone). In 1830, he moved with his family to Normandale, Upper Canada and was employed at the ironworks and foundry of Joseph Van Norman. Although not formally educated, Elijah started his own foundry in St. Thomas, Ontario, partnering with his father and Philip Cady Van Brocklin in 1834. By September of that year, Elijah, Jr. was sole owner of the company he named E. Leonard, Jr. & Co. 1840 saw him move to London, ON and establish another machine shop and foundry at Fullarton and Ridout Streets. E. Leonard, Jr. & Co. produced, primarily, steam engines and agricultural machinery; in 1850, a second foundry was built at York and Waterloo Streets in London to handle the product demands.

In 1847, Elijah married Emeline Woodman (b. 1819), daughter of Elijah Woodman, a London pioneer who was arrested and transported to Van Diemen's Land (Tasmania) for his role in the 1837-1838 Upper Canada rebellion. Elijah and Emeline had six children:

Frank Elton (1848-1923) Edwin E (1851-1873) Charles Weston (1852-1912) Alice Emma (1855-1861) Ella Adelia (b. 1858) Mary Adhia (b. 1860)

He served in the local militia as an ensign in 1851 and was promoted to Captain in 1856. In 1841, Leonard was named the first president of the Mechanic's Institute, and he helped to organize London's volunteer fire brigade in the early 1850s. He was a founding member of the Horticultural and Mechanics Association and was elected to the first committee for the county agricultural society, the precursor of the Western Fair Association. In 1854, Leonard built an imposing Regency style home, "Locust Mount," at what is now 661 Talbot Street; the home was damaged by fire and demolished in early 2008.

Leonard's interest in local infrastructural improvement, particularly transportation and finance, is well documented. He became a shareholder in the London and Port Stanley Railway Company and, in 1857, was an incorporator of the London and Lake Huron Railway Company. In 1864, he helped to organize the London Savings Bank and was one of the original promoters of the Huron and Erie Savings and Loan Society (which was, until recently, Canada Trust). He remained director of Huron and Erie until the year before his death.

In the early 1870s, Elijah invited his two surviving sons, Frank and Charles, into partnership in the foundry; the company was renamed E. Leonard & Sons and focused on boilers as a specialty. With his sons now more engaged in the family business, Leonard devoted his later years to politics. He served as London's third mayor in 1857 and was elected to the Legislative Council of the Province of Canada for the Malahide division in 1862. He was appointed a senator in 1867, and he would hold this position until his death in 1891. Elijah Leonard, Jr. is buried in the family plot in section C at Mount Pleasant Cemetery in London, Ontario.

Scope and Content

This series contains records of local votes, scrapbooks, an essay and a biography. The record of local votes relate to Elijah Leonard's election to the Legislative Council in 1862. Included are an essay purported to have been written by Elijah Leonard in his youth plus an autobiography (Memoir) with 'a Son's reminiscences' by Frank Leonard concluding the publication.

File/Item List

Title	Dates	Box/File
Essay by Elijah Leonard c. 1830? (also photo)	[ca. 1830], [ca. 1880]	B4701-003-9
Votes charted by municipality – London, West Nissouri, Westminster, North Dorchester [vol.]	1862	B4702-002-1
Votes charted by municipality – St. Thomas, Yarmouth, Malahide, South Dorchester, Bayham and Vienna [vol.]	1862	B4702-002-1
Votes charted by municipality – Aldborough, Dunwich, and Southwold [vol.]	1862	B4702-002-1
Votes charted by municipality –London [vol.]	1862	B4702-002-1
F.E. and Elijah Leonard scrapbook [vol.]	1840-1894	X1924

Title	Dates	Box/File
The Honourable Elijah Leonard : A Memoir [vol.]	1894	B4702-001-6
Elijah Leonard Scrapbook (disassembled)		
Note: a few posters or ephemera have been catalogued and housed separately (see Appendix 1 for details)	[ca. 1850-1890]	X1917-1918, X2420
See Appendix 1 for listing of contents for X1917-18		

Series 3 Frank E. and Alice Louise (Ibbotson) Leonard correspondence and other documents

Dates

1865-1929

Extent

26 cm of textual records 9 volumes [textual material, graphic material]

Biographical Sketch

Frank Elton Leonard was born in London, Ontario on November 16, 1848, the second son of Elijah Leonard, Jr. and Emmeline Woodman. Frank was educated at London Central School. In 1875, Frank and his brother Charles became partners in their father's foundry business and the company became E. Leonard & Sons. He married Jane M. Williams on January 5, 1876 in Hamilton. Jane died only two years later in 1878. In 1880, Frank married Alice Louise Ibbotson (b. 1850) and they had six children:

Benjamin Elijah Leonard (1880-1881)

Elton Ibbotson Leonard (1882-1974)

Edwin Woodman Leonard (1883-1917)

Alice Leonard Cronyn (1886-1975)

Estelle Leonard Carling (1888-1966)

Elaine Leonard Schofield (b. 1892)

After his father Elijah's death in 1891, Frank became president of the family foundry. In the early 1900s, Frank was commissioner for the Temiskaming and Northern Ontario Railway. He was a prominent and respected businessman in London, serving as a member of the London Board of Trade and as president of the Chamber of Commerce. He served as an alderman for the City of London in 1892, and was active in the London Club. Frank died in 1923, and Alice Louise in 1940; both are buried in the family plot in section C at Mount Pleasant Cemetery in London Ontario.

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence written to both Frank and Alice Louise Leonard, as well as Frank Leonard's scrapbooks, school notebooks, and newspaper clippings. A certificate of remembrance from the Huron and Erie Trust Company, commemorating Frank's death and given to Alice Louise, is also included.

Conditions Governing Use

For preservation reasons, restrictions on photocopying apply to Frank Leonard's scrapbooks located in Subseries 3 (see description for more details).

Arrangement

This series is arranged into the following subseries:

Subseries 1: Letters to Alice Louise Leonard

Subseries 2: Frank Leonard documents

Subseries 3: Frank and Alice Leonard scrapbooks and clippings

Subseries 4: Miscellaneous documents

Sub Series 3.1 Letters to Alice Louise Leonard

Dates

1892-1905, 1915-1917, 1927-1929

Extent

20 cm of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains letters addressed to Alice Louise Leonard.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Miscellaneous correspondence to Alice Leonard	1901-1904	B4699-2
Miscellaneous correspondence to Frank Leonard	1892-1904	B4699-3
Letters to Alice Leonard from Woodman Leonard	1899-1904, 1915-1917	B4699-18
Letters to Alice Louise Leonard from Woodman Leonard (R.M.C.)	1900-1902	B4699-21
Letters to Alice Leonard from Ibbotson Leonard	1903-1904	B4699-36
Letters to Alice Louise Leonard from Woodman Leonard	1904-1905	B4699-25
Letters to Alice Louise Leonard from Ibbotson Leonard from U.C.C.	1899-1900	B4699-38
Letters to Alice Louise Leonard from Ibbotson Leonard from R.M.C.	1900-1904	B4699-39
Letters to Alice Louise Leonard from Ibbotson Leonard from McGill University	1905	B4699-40
Letters to Alice Louise Leonard from Ibbotson Leonard	1927-1929	B4699-41

Sub Series 3.2 Frank Leonard correspondence

Dates

1903-1904, 1908-1913

Extent

3 cm of textual records 1 volume of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains the personal and business correspondence of Frank Leonard; some related to E Leonard & Sons.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to Frank E. Leonard – R.M.C. correspondence	1898-1902	B4699-31
Letters to Frank Leonard from Ibbotson Leonard	1903-1904	B4699-37
F.E.L. 1908-1913 business letters [vol.] – mix of personal and business correspondence	1908-1913	B4702-003-3

Sub Series 3.3 Frank and Alice Leonard scrapbooks and clippings

Dates

1865, 1867, 1873-[ca. 1922]

Extent

2 cm of textual records 7 volumes of textual records ca. 42 photographs

Scope and Content

This series contains the newspaper clippings and scrapbooks of Frank Leonard. Some of the scrapbooks contain photographs that relate to the E. Leonard & Sons manufacturing plant. Several notebooks from his educational years are included. In addition, there is a scrapbook kept by Alice Leonard.

Conditions Governing Use

For preservation reasons, restrictions on photocopying apply to Frank Leonard's scrapbooks, found in boxes X1920 and X1921.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Newspaper clippings	1917	B4881-1
F.E. Leonard scrapbook [vol.]	1891-1912	X1919
F.E.L. Famous battles 1812, Niagara, Riel scrapbook [vol.]	[1882-1922]	X1921
F.E. Leonard scrapbook [2 vols.]	1897-1918	X1920
Frank Leonard's copy book 1867 [vol.]	1867	B4699-33
Frank Leonard's notebooks from Jones Commercial College [vol.]	1865	B4699-34
Alice Leonard scrapbook, concerts clippings [vol.]	1873-1887	X1919

Sub Series 3.4 Miscellaneous documents

Dates

1894, 1923

Extent

1 cm of textual records 1 volume of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains Frank Leonard's miscellaneous documents. Genealogical sketches by Frank Leonard's cousin and calligraphy letters of remembrance are included.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Woodman family in London, ON Henry Clay Woodman – Stanley, Wisconsin Uncle of Frank E. Leonard	1923	B4699-24
Apr. 1923 Huron & Erie / May 1923 Canada Trust Corp. on death of Frank E. Leonard [calligraphy letters of remembrance] [vol.]	1923	B4702-001-5

Series 4 Ibbotson Leonard records

Dates

1890-1952

Extent

40 cm of textual records 9 volumes of textual records 14 maps

Biographical Sketch

Elton Ibbotson (Ibb) Leonard was born in 1882, the second son of Frank and Alice Louise Leonard. An intelligent and studious young man, Ibbotson attended Upper Canada College in Toronto and, in 1903, graduated second in his class from Kingston's Royal Military College. Ibbotson continued his education and received a Bachelor of Science Degree in engineering from McGill University in 1905. Ibbotson served 11 years with the 1st Hussars in his hometown of London Ontario - seven years spent as a squadron commander and two years as an adjutant. In 1914, Ibbotson married Sarah McConkey Brinton.

When war broke out in 1914, the 1st Hussars were not selected to accompany the Canadian Expeditionary Force to England. Lt. Col. Leonard was given command of the newly raised 7th Canadian Mounted Rifles, a cavalry unit, in February 1915. During the first few months, he was busy equipping, training and recruiting men, horses and officers. Ibbotson and the 7th CMR arrived in France in the late spring of 1915, tasked chiefly with building and maintaining roads, reconnaissance and acting as guides leading other units to the front. On 12 May 1916 Ibbotson became the second in command of the newly formed Canadian Light Horse, and he served with the Canadian Light Horse until the end of the war. Colonel Ibbotson Leonard was awarded the Distinguished Service Order for his dedication to duty.

Returning to London, Ibbotson took over leadership of the family foundry business and was named president after his father Frank's death in 1923. Ibbotson's and Sarah's first and only child, a son, Brinton Leonard, was born that same year. Ibbotson became president of the London Health Association in 1926, and was named president and lifetime member of the Association of Professional Engineers (Ontario) in 1932. He also served on the Town Planning Commission and was, for 16 years until his death, chairman of the London Division Commissionaires. Col. Leonard was secretary of the London Hunt Club hut committee maintained an avid interest in horses, hunting and current events. Ibbotson died in 1974 and is buried in the Leonard Family plot in section C of Mount Pleasant Cemetery in London Ontario.

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence written to E. Ibbotson Leonard, as well as his war-time and peace-time diaries and personal papers. Battlefield maps, financial records, scrapbooks, and documents for family-owned property in London, Ontario are included.

Conditions Governing Use

The degree within Series 4.4 is restricted access due to poor condition; please consult with Archivist.

Arrangement

This series is arranged into the following subseries:

Subseries 1: Diaries Subseries 2: Scrapbooks Subseries 3: Correspondence

Subseries 4: Miscellaneous documents

SubSeries 4.1 Diaries

Dates

1909-1914

Extent

2 volumes of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains diaries kept by Colonel Ibbotson Leonard.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Col. E.I.L. 1909-1911 [vol.]	1909-1911	B4702-003-1
Col. E.I.L. 1912-1914 [vol.]	1912-1914	B4702-003-2

Subseries 4.2 Scrapbooks

Dates

1898-1941

Extent

6 volumes of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains scrapbooks compiled by Ibbotson Leonard. Newspaper clippings, ticket stubs, and event programmes are included; also there are photographs throughout the scrapbooks.

Title	Dates	Box/File
E. Ibb. L. 1898-1911 scrapbook [vol.]	1898-1911	X1927
Ibbotson Leonard 1907 1914-1916 [vol.]	1907, 1914-1916	X1928
Ibbotson Leonard scrapbook 1917-1923 [vol.]	1917-1923	X1929
Ibbotson Leonard scrapbook [vol.]	1923-1929	X1930
Col. Ibbotson Leonard D.S.O. scrap book 1929-1937 [vol.]	1929-1937	X1931
Col. I. Leonard scrapbook [vol.]	1938-1941	X1932

Subseries 4.3 Correspondence

Dates

1892-1908, 1914-1918

Extent

15 cm of textual records 1 volume of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence addressed to Ibbotson Leonard and army book correspondence created by Ibbotson.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to Ibbotson Leonard from an aunt	1892-1904	B4699-4
Letters to Ibbotson Leonard from W. Plummer	1903-1904	B4699-14
Letters to Ibbotson Leonard from Aunt May (McCashill?)	1905	B4699-16
Letters to Ibbotson Leonard from Woodman Leonard	1903-1905, 1908	B4699-19
E Woodman Leonard to Ibbotson	1914-1915	B4700-001-2
Sarah to Ibbotson	1917	B4700-002-4
Diary letters Frank to Ibbotson	1916-1918	B4701-002-2
Ibbotson Leonard's Corr. Re commission etc. 1914	1914	B4700-001-4
Papers of Lt. Col. Ibbotson re: organization of C.M.R.	1915	B4700-001-1
I. Leonard 1917 army book correspondence book [vol.]	1917	B4702-003-5

Subseries 4.4 Miscellaneous documents

Dates

1890-1952

Extent

25 cm of textual records 14 maps

Scope and Content

This series contains battlefield maps, financial records, and documents concerning family-owned property in London, Ontario. Miscellaneous loose clippings, souvenir programmes, and other documents are included. Ibbotson Leonard's engineering degree is also included.

Conditions Governing Use

The degree within Series 4.4 is has restricted access for preservation reasons due to poor condition; please consult with Archivist.

	Dates	Box/File
Ibbotson's accounts 1904-1905	1904-1905	B4699-43
Assorted maps of battlefields	1915	B4701-002-1
Papers re Trafalgar St. Property	1916-1949	B4701-002-4
Other miscellany	1903-1952	B4701-003-1
Miscellaneous clippings, souvenir programs, etc.	1890-1946	B4701-003-7
Miscellaneous 1944-1950	1944-1950	B4701-003-8
Ibbotson Leonard degree 1905 [poor condition]	1905	X1932

Title	Dates	Box/File
Historical Record of Canadian Light Horse by Ibbotson Leonard	1917	B4701-002-7
Certificate from American Society of Mechanical Engineers	1906	X2400

Series 5 Woodman Leonard records

Dates

1898-1917, 1921

Extent

24 cm of textual records 7 volumes [textual material]

Biographical Sketch

Edwin Woodman (Wood) Leonard was born November 23, 1883 the third son of Frank Elton Leonard and his second wife Alice Louise Ibbotson. Woodman attended Upper Canada College and Royal Military College. He rose to Major in an artillery unit in the Canadian militia following graduation, and was also made partner in the family foundry business in 1910. In 1914, Woodman was called to train at Valcartier Camp, Quebec in preparation for the first Canadian Contingent's entry into World War I. As a Major in the 12th Battery of the 3rd Artillery Brigade of the 1st Canadian Division, he sailed from Canada aboard the troop ship *Montezuma* and arrived at Devonport Harbour on October 14, 1914. The 1st Canadian Division left England early in 1915. Woodman's correspondence home indicates that he was heavily involved in the 2nd Battle of Ypres (April, 1915). He was promoted to Lt. Colonel in 1916 and was, on June 22 of that year, given command of June of the 3rd Canadian Artillery Brigade, 1st Canadian Division. Woodman and his brother Ibbotson's diaries and letters record that Woodman and the 3rd brigade were present at virtually every major action Canadian troops were involved in during 1915 and 1916. At the battle of Vimy Ridge, on April 9th 1917, Woodman was struck by shrapnel in his left shoulder and was paralyzed below the waist, dying that same day. Woodman Leonard is buried in section II, row D, plot 14 of Lapugnoy Military Cemetery near Bethune, France. Lt. Col. Woodman Leonard was awarded the Distinguished Service Order for his wartime service to Canada.

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence, scrapbooks, and diaries relating to the life and death of E. Woodman Leonard. Woodman's personal reflections during war-time and peace-time are recorded. Additions from family members after Woodman's death recount the story of his death, burial, and memorial services in his honour.

Conditions Governing Use

For preservation reasons, restrictions on photocopying apply to Woodman Leonard's scrapbooks, found in boxes X1925 and X1926.

Arrangement

This series is arranged into the following subseries:

Subseries 1: Diaries Subseries 2: Scrapbooks

Subseries 3: Correspondence and songs

Subseries 5.1 Diaries

Dates

1902, 1914-1917

Extent

20 cm of textual records 4 volumes of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains diaries written by Woodman Leonard. Ibbotson Leonard wrote an account of Woodman's 1917 death in his brother's diary.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Woodman Leonard's diary at R.M.C.	1902	B4699-26
E.W.L. 1902-1904 R.M.C. Kingston [vol.]	1902-1904	B4702-002-2
E.W.L. 1907-1910 journal [vol.]	1907-1910	B4702-002-3
E.W. Leonard 1911-1912 [vol.]	1911-1912	B4702-002-4
Woodman's diary Aug. 1 – Dec. 31 1914	1914	B4700-002-7
Woodman's diary JanMay; May-Oct.1915	1915	B4700-003-1
Woodman's diary March 15 – May 24 1916	1916	B4700-003-2
Diary of Woodman Leonard Oct. 1915 – April 1916; May 25 – June 30, 1916	1915-1916	B4700-003-3
Diary of Woodman Leonard July 1 – Aug. 31 1916 and Sept-Dec 1916	1916	B4700-003-4
Woodman's diary 1917	1917	B4700-003-5

Title	Dates	Box/File
E. Woodman Leonard diary and names Jan. to Apr. 1917 [includes account of his death and "dog tag"] [vol.]	1917	B4702-002-5

Subseries 5.2 Scrapbooks

Dates

1898-1922

Extent

3 volumes of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains scrapbooks compiled by Woodman Leonard. Newspaper clippings of Woodman's death were inserted by his father, Frank Leonard. In addition there are sometimes photographs also include in the scrapbooks.

Title	Dates	Box/File
LieutColonel Woodman Leonard, D.S.O.: RMC/McGill/ U.C.C./Riding Years/Petawawa [vol.]	1898-1914	X1925
LieutColonel Woodman Leonard, D.S.O. [vol.]	1914-1917	X1925
LieutColonel Woodman Leonard, D.S.O. [with later additions by Frank Leonard] [vol.]	1914-1922	X1926

Subseries 5.3 Correspondence and songs

Dates

1900, [191-?]

Extent

4 cm of textual records

Scope and Content

This series contains correspondence addressed to Woodman Leonard from his brother, Ibbotson. Several pages of song lyrics are also included.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters to Woodman Leonard from Ibbotson Leonard	1900	B4699-42
Words to songs – Woodman	[191-?]	B4700-003-6

Series 6 Photographs

Dates

1862-1946

Extent

ca. 1809 photographs9 volumes [graphic material]

Scope and Content

This series contains loose photographs and albums documenting the Leonard family between 1862 and 1946. Family portraits including the Brintons, vacation photographs, and photos documenting military life are included. Some such as the Queen Alexandra Sanatorium, London historic scenes and other portraits are described at the item level within our Western Archives Photograph Collection; please consult other listings or databases.

Title	Dates	Box/File
Frank Leonard family holidays [vol.]	1899-1905	B4880-9
Col. & Mrs. E.I.L. 1915 + military [vol.]	1915	B4880-7
F.E. Leonard London Centennial 1876 [vol.]	1876	B4880-10
Miscellaneous photos	[ca. 1880]-1946	B4880-1
Miscellaneous family photos	[ca. 1880]-1946	B4880-2
Miscellaneous photos + negatives	[ca. 1910]	B4880-3
Leonard family photo 1862-1900 [vol.]	1862-1900	B4881-5
Royal Military College student theatrical production (group photo)	1901	X2400
E. Ibbotson Leonard London Ontario 1903-1915 [vol.]	1903-1915	B4881-4

Title	Dates	Box/File
E. Ibbotson Leonard 1900 R.M.C. 1904 McGill + snap shots [vol.]	1900-1904	B4881-3
Col. E. Ibb Leonard 1914 Lon. Ont. Tamagami [sic.] – Hunting photos, Sanitorium photos album [vol]	1914-1943	X1923
Leonard family photo album [photocopy] *to consult originals review Archival Holdings Database	1899-1905	X1920
Leonard [Album] – disassembled		AFC 49-47
Portrait Album [vol.]		AFC 49-46
Pathological laboratories of the Queen Alexandra Sanatorium Album [vol.] *see also photocopies	[1910?]	AFC 49-45 B4881-2

THE LEONARD FAMILY FONDS AFC 64 SERIES DESCRIPTIONS and FILE LISTS

Series 7 E. Leonard and Sons business documents

Dates

1903-1950

Extent

10 cm of textual material 4 volumes [textual material, graphic material] ca. 345 blueprints ca. 20 photographs

Scope and Content

This series contains financial records and product descriptions and depictions relating to the business activities of E. Leonard and Sons. For additional photographs within the scrapbooks of the business, (both interior and exterior) as well as shell making during the Great War see Series 3.3.

File/Item List

Title	Dates	Box/File
E. Leonard and Sons product cards	[ca. 1910]	B4880-4
Blueprints for foundry, etc.	1906-1931	B4701-002-6
Miscellaneous photos, papers etc. Re: E. Leonard & Sons	1903-1950	B4701-003-6
Numerical list of E.L. & S. Cuts [vol.]	[ca. 1910]	B4702-003-4
E. Leonard and Sons Limited Shell Making 1916 (photo album) [vol.]	1916	X1921
Cash Book [vol.]	1905-1909	X1921
Blueprints of products for E. Leonard & Sons	1919-1929	X2400

Title	Dates	Box/File
Centennial – E. Leonard & Sons Ltd., Re-union programme, Springbank Park	1934	B4881-6
Certificate of appreciation from the London Chamber of Commerce commemorating the 2 nd century of business since founding of E. Leonard & Sons	1934	X2408
100 Years 1834 – 1934 [E. Leonard & Sons] [vol.]	1934	B4881-7
Certificate of appreciation from the London Chamber of Commerce to Colonel Ibbotson Leonard for E. Leonard & Sons century of service, 1838- 1938	1938	X2407

THE LEONARD FAMILY FONDS AFC 64 SERIES DESCRIPTIONS and FILE LISTS

Series 8 Sarah M (Brinton) Leonard personal documents

Dates

1890-1915

Extent

4 volumes [textual material, graphic material] ca. 25 photographs

Biographical Sketch

Sarah McConkey Brinton was born in 1884, the daughter of Frederick Cruse Brinton and Mary D Brinton (née Huey). Sarah Brinton may have attended school at the University of California at Berkley. She married E. Ibbotson Leonard in 1914. After their marriage, Sarah followed Ibbotson to France during World War I; she spent almost four years in England and France working for various charities including Queen Mary's Guild and Lady Bentinck's House. She assisted in forming the Y.W.C.A.'s "Foyer des Alliées" in Tours, France. Following the war, Sarah was president of the London's Women's Auxiliary and was heavily involved in charitable functions supporting the Queen Alexandra Sanatorium. Sarah and Ibbotson had one son, Brinton Leonard, in 1923. Sarah died in London in 1974 and is buried alongside her husband in the family plot in section C of Mount Pleasant Cemetery, London Ontario.

Scope and Content

This series contains photographs, autographs, and a diary relating to the early life of Sarah Leonard. A small book of dance steps is included.

File/Item List

Title	Dates	Box/File
Mrs. Leonard's 1915 photos of club in France where she worked (photo album) [vol.]	1915	B4880-8
Sarah M. Brinton autograph book [vol.]	1891	B4702-002-6
Sarah M. Brinton's dance pocket guide [vol.]	1890	B4702-002-6

Title	Dates	Box/File
Sarah Brinton's diary and photograph [vol.]	[1915?]	B4702-002-6

THE LEONARD FAMILY FONDS AFC 64 SERIES DESCRIPTIONS and FILE LISTS

Series 9 Brinton Family documents and photographs

Dates

1828-1917

Extent

10 cm of textual records 2 volumes [graphic material] ca. 292 photographs

Biographical Sketch

The Brinton family was originally from Chester County, Pennsylvania (near the Delaware border). Sarah McConkey Brinton was the daughter of Frederick Cruse Brinton and Mary D. Brinton (née Huey). She married Ibbotson Leonard in 1914.

Scope and Content

This series consists of personal correspondence, event programs, vacation photographs and land deeds pertaining to several generations of the Brinton family.

File/Item List

Title	Dates	Box/File
Letters from Ibbotson to Mrs. Brinton (his mother-in-law)	1915-1917	B4700-001-3
S. Brinton 1913 (photo album) [vol.]	1913	B4880-5
Sarah McConkey Brinton 1910 (photo album) [vol.]	1910-1913	B4880-6
Land deeds Pennsylvania	1847-1866	B4701-003-2
Member of Brinton family? Re death of Milton Brinton	1828-1829	B4701-003-3
Papers re: Brinton plantation 1857 (and misc. re: Brinton family)	1854-1903	B4701-003-4
Brinton letters and autograph book	[ca. 1823]-1868	B4701-003-5

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Malahide Election - Lament for poor "Becher"	newspaper			Y	
Royal Scots of Canada entertainment, Academy of Music, Friday evening	clipping programme	Dec 18, 1885		Y	
Share stock certificate (2 shares) for Frank E. Leonard with Huron & Erie Savings & Loan Society	certificate	Jan 8, 1873		Y	
Share stock certificate (150 shares) for Frank E. Leonard with Huron & Erie Savings & Loan Society	certificate	Jan 1, 1874		Y	
Grand concert at Victoria Hall [London Ont] by the Philharmonic Quartette Club of Detroit, Thursday evening	programme	Oct 6, 1887	2 copies	Y	Y
Grand concert byt the Mendelssohn Quintette Club of Boston	programme			Y	Y
Souvenir - Plays at Government House 1872 to 1878	souvenir booklet	1878	with Lady Dufferin's kind regards	Y	
Queen's Hall - Musical soiree under the auspices of The Ladies of Christ Church Cathedral, Wednesday evening	programme	Apr 14, 1886		Y	Y
Tuscan Lodge, no. 195, G.R.C., London Masonic Ball - addressed to Mr. & Mrs. F. Leonard	invitation	Dec 29, 1881		Y	
President and Members of the London Club At Home, Tuesday evening - addressed to Mr. & Mrs. Frank Leonard	invitation	Feb 12, 1884		Y	
Grand concert by the Schubert Vocal Quartette of Chicago at Victoria Hall, London, Friday	programme	Nov 19, 1886	advertising on back for A & S Nordheimer, pianoforte and music warerooms	Y	Y

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Grand concert by the Schubert Quartette	programme		on pink paper; advertising on back for A & S Nordheimer	Y	
McDowell Comedy Company present 'The Private Secretary' at the Grand Opera House, London, Ont., Wednesday evening	programme	Apr 8, 1885	advertising on back for Queen's Grocery; Summers & Orrell; Beltz's; Fitzgerald, Scandrett & Co.; Galpin's Club restaurant; Ed. Palmer's cigar store and billiard parlor; James Perkin, Family Butcher	Y	Y
Court Musicians and Mr. Walter Pelham from London, England perform at [Grand Opera House, London, Ont.]	programme	Nov 18, 1886	clipping	Y	Y
London Arion Club - third season, Grand Concert in the Grand Opera House, Friday	programme	May 27, 1887	officers of Arion Club on last page	Y	Y
Royal Scots of Canada entertainment, Academy of Music of popular drama 'Jessie Brown or The Relief of Lucknow'	programme	Jan 4-5, 1884	clipping; see incomplete advertising on back	Y	
Masthead for E. Leonard's London Iron and Engine Works	receipt	c1870s	masthead only	Y	

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Notice of Great Western Railway celebration of opening of the London and Port Stanley Railway on Thursday	newspaper clipping	Oct 16, 1856	on back is notice due to unavoidable delays in the finishing the road the L & P S have postponed celebration of opening (dated Sept 24, 1856)	Y	
Presentation of Professor Bristol's Equine School on Thursday and Saturday at Grand Opera House Lawrence Barrett in 'Francesca da Rimini' at Grand	programme	1886 May 16,	cut from Grand Opera House programme; advertisements on back for W.A. Brock, gun repair and fishing tackle; Sawyer's the Hatter; Edward de la Hooke, City passenger and ticket agent; W. Halle & Co., importers of pianos; Barkwell's Drug Store; Parlor Boot and Shoe Store	Y	Y
Opera House, Saturday evening	programme	[1885]		Y	Y
Letter from Terry O'Driscoll to Dennis O'Toole [with Leonard and temperance mentioned in old style English text]	Letter	Dec 17, 1857		Y	

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Results of East Northumberland election, the Liberal candidate returned; Irish Agitation, National Land League of Great Britain organized	newspaper clipping	Mar 25-26		Y	P
Malahide Division - Glorious victory! Mr. Leonard elected!	newspaper clipping		from Sarnia newspaper (see back); defeated Mr. Beecher [Becher]	Y	
Conservatives of Malahide and Bayham holding pic-nic in compliment to Mr. Becher on Saturday Oct 4	invitation	Sept 29, 1862		Y	
Lotta and her superb company present new play 'Pawn Ticket no. 210' at the Grand Opera House on Monday	programme	Oct 24, [1881 or 1887]	based on perpetual calendar	Y	Y
Gilmore's Grand Concert, Queen's Avenue Rink, London, Thursday evening	programme	June 7 1888		Y	Y
Letter by Henry C.R. Becher to M.B. Portman re: election for M.P.P. for Malahide	newspaper clipping			Y	
Sunday School Centenary - celebration at Christ Church Cathedral, Sunday afternoon	programme	July 4		Y	Y
Parlor success - Memories of the Past / The Poet's Flower; words by Aurele Barthe, music by E. Lavigne	programme			Y	Y
5th Battalion Royal Scots of Canada annual Highland Games will be held on the Tecumseh Baseball Grounds on Saturday / Grand Opera House Royal Scots of Canada will produce Jessie Brown or, the Relief of Lucknow	programme	June 15-16, 1888		Y	Y

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Farewell season of the world-renowned tragedienne Janauschek in the musical drama, Meg Merrilies, Wednesday evening	programme	Nov 17, 1886	Grand Opera House	Y	Y
Mrs. Langtry and Maurice Barrymore in Lady of Lyons, Saturday matinee	programme	Nov 11, 1887	London, Ont.; visit Sare's Restaurant, Richmond St., opposite Masonic Temple	Y	Y
Globe special fast train upon its arrive at London Station	newspaper clipping	March 3, 1887	date of train; date of paper not known	Y	
Various newspaper advertisements / on back article on Rev. Mr. Beecher preaching to his congregation	newspaper clipping		unknown newspaper but likely Plymouth	Y	
Leonard & Sons reduction in operations until a new partnership is formed	newspaper clipping		London newspaper	Y	
Railway and its antecedents	newspaper clipping	ca June 1856	Western Advertiser newspaper; complete article (in 2 pieces)	Y	
Malahide Division - election results	newspaper clipping	ca Dec 1861			
View of Fraser House Hotel and grounds from lake	newspaper clipping		lithograph illustration	Y	
Obituary for Senator Elijah Leonard	newspaper clipping	May 15, 1891	London Advertiser	Y	
Obituary for Senator Elijah Leonard (continued)	newspaper clipping	May 15, 1891	London Advertiser	Y	
George Belford, the eminent English elocutionist will give 2 humurous & dramatic recitals at Victora Hall, London on Monday and Tuesday evening	programme	May 10-11		Y	Y

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Description	newspaper		complete article (in 2	Oliginui	Сору
Obituary for Rev. Henry Ward Beecher	clipping		pieces)	Y	
Calling card for Mrs. Maurice ? Baldwin	calling card		•	Y	
Letter to Ibbottson Leonard	Letter		on mourning paper	Y	
Invitation to Frank Leonard & Lady to attend First Excursion of the "City of London" to Springbank on Thursday the 17th	invitation		Committee members listed on back	Y	
Toronto Weekly Message Extra - articles on various elections and to electors	newspaper clipping	Dec 2, 1857		Y	
Appointment of Ensign Elijah Leonard to Captain in the 2nd Battalion of London Militia beginning March 6, 1856	Appointment	June 10, 1856		Y	
Bishop of Huron and Mrs. Baldwin At Home Thursday evenings December 4 and 11 to Mr. & Mrs. Leonard	invitation	Nov 15, 1884		Y	
Appointment of Elijah Leonard as Ensign in the 1st Battalion of Middlesex Militia on Aug 8, 1851	Appointment	Sept 2, 1851		Y	
Appointment of Captain Elijah Leonard as Captain of Number Two Company Division, Reserve Militia of the Regimental Division of the City of London beginning March 5, 1859	Appointment	Sept 21, 1870		Y	
Summon to the Senate of the Dominion of Canada by the Governor General of Canada	invitation	June 29, 1867		Y	
35th Season annual concert tour of Mendelssohn Quintette Club Concert Co. of Boston	programme			Y	
Rev. Dr. Baldwin, Bishop-Elect of Huron	newspaper clipping		lithograph illustration	Y	

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Academy of Music Grand Italian Opera Wednesday Feb. 26 to Saturday March 1	programme			Y	
List of East Elgin electoral meetings from July 21 to Sept 5	manuscript		both sides	Y	
Article on Captain DeMontenach funeral	newspaper clipping			Y	
Comments on Mr. Leonard's position on representation based on population	newspaper clipping	Dec 3, 1857	based on date on back	Y	
Background of Elijah Leonard in regards to the Malahide Division election	newspaper clipping	ca 1860	based on date on back	Y	
Envelope flap with text handwritten on it 'Presented as a New Years Present to his son Frank January 1, 1874	note	Jan 1, 1874	see #5 (may go together)	Y	
Notice of sale of Benjamin Cronyn residence on corner of Queen's Avenue and Adelaide Street to Frank Leonard at a price of \$22,000 cash	newspaper clipping			Y	
Letter of acceptance of resignation from Huron & Erie Loan & Savings Co. with thanks for 27 years as member of Board to E. Leonard	Letter	March 4, 1891		Y	
Indenture made by George Robb, Daniel Decon, and Cornellius D. Paul and other electors to choose Elijah Leonard to represent the Malahide Division in the Legislative Council until Nov. 1870	Indenture	Sept 22, 1862		Y	
Edwin Elijah Leonard given permission to visit the Island of Cuba	Passport	Nov 21, 1871		Y	
Huron & Erie Loan & Savings Company photograph	newspaper clipping			Y	

Description	Type	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Great Reform Meeting where John Wilson gave parting address as retiring when Elijah Leonard is being nominated for M.P.P.	newspaper clipping	ca 1855	2 pieces; article incomplete	Y	
Political article	newspaper clipping	ca Apr 1857	incomplete	Y	
Public celebration today on the opening of the London & Port Stanley Railway	newspaper clipping	ca May 1855		Y	
Obituary for James M. Williams, retired from Parliament, then appointed to be Registrar of the County of Wentworth	newspaper clipping			Y	
Jimmy Lane going to mass meeting in Sunday School Times	newspaper clipping		2 pieces	Y	
Valentine card with girl in costume with words 'Yours forever'	card			Y	
Calling card for Hattie F. Richmond	calling card			Y	
Article supporting Mr. Becher as the representative for the Malahide Division to the Legislative Council	newspaper clipping			Y	
Train schedule for celebration opening of the London and Port Stanley Railway on Thursday	newspaper clipping	Oct 16, 1856		Y	
Article on the win of Elijah Leonard of the Legislative Council election	newspaper clipping			Y	
Valentine card with hand written note 'a greeting from St. Valentine'	card			Y	
Envelope cover addressed to Mrs. Ibbotson F.E. Leonard, postmarked Washington, D.C.	envelope	Mar 28 1887		Y	

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Advertisement for the Aeolian, the greatest musical invention of modern times, from Geo. Wright & Co., 225 Regent St., London, W. (with ad for A. Barrett & Sons, silversmiths, jewellers & fitted bag makers on back)	blotter			Y	
Invitation to Mr. & Mrs. Leonard from Mrs. Charles Murray, Queen's Ave.	invitation	Oct 10		Y	
Anouncement of marriage of Dr. Walter Woodman and Mary Emmeline Weston, Deering, Maine	card	1883		Y	
Invitation to wedding of Edith? To Dr. Andrew Henderson, Galt	card	Apr 16 1884	incomplete	Y	
Stewards listed of organization including: L.C. Leonard, Jr.	card			Y	
List of dances at Hotel Fiske at Saturday evening hop	card			Y	
Constitution of The Women's Auxiliary Missionary Association in connection with the Diocese of Huron	leaflet			Y	
Madame Helen Hopekirk will give piano recital in Montreal at the Windsor Hotel	programme			Y	
Mr. & Mrs. Henry M. Leonard At Home Detroit	card	Mar 12, 1883		Y	
Farewell address by Mrs. Baldwin to her bible class on the occasion of her leaving for London, Ont.	card	Apr 27, 1884		Y	
Ad for Lithiated Hydrangea from Lambert & Co., Man'F Chemists, St. Louis	advertisement		2 pieces	Y	
Mr. & Mrs. William Frederick Blake	calling card			Y	
Story			incomplete	Y	

Description	Type	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Six delusions with respect to the English Church	newspaper clipping			Y	
Christmas gifts article	newspaper clipping		from ? Observer newspaper	Y	
A Marriage and a Will; story about will be read and estate going to new heiress	newspaper clipping		incomplete (2 pieces)	Y	
Remarks at weddings	newspaper clipping			Y	
An amusing mistake	newspaper clipping			Y	
Bequests	newspaper clipping			Y	
Joseph Mackay's will: an elaborate document, bequests of half a million	newspaper clipping		2 pieces	Y	
J. M. Williams' death: interesting sketch of the remarkable career of one of Hamilton's most respected citizens	newspaper clipping			Y	
Representative giving farewell speech	newspaper clipping		incomplete; possibly John Wilson- see other article above	Y	
Article re: Separate Schools	newspaper clipping		incomplete	Y	
Infamous bargain and sale or the correspondence between the Hon. Mr. Portman and Mr. Becher	newspaper clipping			Y	
Article re: Malahide candidacy	newspaper clipping		incomplete	Y	

Description	Type	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Public baths question: ex-Mayor Campbell on the situation; the Liberal proposition of the Leonard brothers discussed	newspaper clipping		in London Advertiser	Y	
Matrimonial superstitions	newspaper clipping			Y	
Little cash girl	newspaper clipping		2 pieces	Y	
By the Queen A Proclamation for uniting the Provinces of Canada, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, into one Dominion, under the name of Canada	reproduction	July 1 1867	1st Dominion Day	Y	
Gladstone speech	newspaper clipping	[1885]		Y	
Article on Frederick and Evelyn Burnaby	newspaper clipping		incomplete	Y	
Article	newspaper clipping		incomplete	Y	
Programme of procession at funeral of Bro. E.W. Hyman to Mount Pleasant Cemetery from City Hall	programme	Apr 15, 1878		Y	
Residency of seven years statement by Elijah Leonard of London, formerly of Syracuse, N.Y.	Statement	Dec 31, 1849		Y	
At Home at the Queen's Avenue Rink sent to Mr. & Mrs. Frank Leonard	invitation	Dec 12, 1883		Y	
Invitation to the Benedicts' Ball to Mr. & Mrs. Frank Leonard at Tecumseh House on Tuesday evening March 1	invitation			Y	

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Naturalization certificate for Elijah Leonard from Court of General Quarter Sessions of the Peace	certificate	Jan 2, 1850		Y	
Funeral notice for William J. Collver, died at Aylmer	notice	Apr 6, 1890		Y	
Mr. & Mrs. Leonard are invited by Mrs. Charles Murray to at home, Queen's Ave. on Friday	invitation	Oct 10		Y	
Menu for dinner on Saturday Aug 13, 1887	Menu	Aug 13, 1887	on heavy cardstock	Y	
Photograph of woman from published book	photograph		text 'yours sincerely E.W. Leonard'	Y	
To the electors of the City of London in a very few days by A Protestant Elector	broadside		see CIHM microform copy at DBWMFM F1003.C5 no.10260	Y	Y
Catechism of the Separate School Act : vote for Elijah Leonard the unflinching opponent of Separate Schools	broadside		from X2420; noted in Theresa's handwriting	Y	
Grand Rally! At the Grand Opera House, London, Ont. Laurier the traitor!, the rebel!	pamphlet	Dec 13, 1886		Y	Y
Electors of the Township of Westminster are requested to meetings at Ellwood's School House, Wharncliffe Inn (Benjamin Young's), and L. Odell's Hotel to hear addresses of Mr. Becher and friends	broadside	Aug 30, 1862		Y	Y
London Lawn Tennis Club request presence of Mr. & Mrs. F. Leonard at the Club Grounds on saturdays during the season	invitation	May 23		Y	
Alas for poor Becher! Poem in the London News	newspaper clipping	•		Y	

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Alde Louise Tuck	calling card			Y	- FJ
Mr. & Mrs. Leonard are invited to at home by The London Lawn Tennis Club on Friday	invitation	June 15, 1888		Y	
Hymn and Leaflets for Letters (Poetry no.1) from Dublin Tract Repository	ephemera			Y	
Reply to nomination call as candidate and acknowledging receipt of your Requisition by Thomas C. Dixon upon resignation of John Wilson from Provincial Parliament as representative of the Town of London	broadside	Dec 15, 1849		Y	Y
Council of Five - poem related to election issues in Town of London; also mentions Mr. Dixon	broadside	Dec 17, 1849		Y	Y
Tecumseh House Anniversary Celebration Ball, London, C.W., Wednesday	dance card	Dec 28, 1859		Y	
Farewell reception hosted by the Dean and Mrs. Baldwin at the Assembly Rooms, Queen's Hall, St. Catherine Street on Friday evening	invitation	Dec 28	sent to Mr. & Mrs. Leonard, and Dr. Ibbotson	Y	
Free Press extra! Final close of poll - East Middlesex Election for Portman and Craik	ephemera	July 9, 1861		Y	
St. Paul's Cathedral Jubilee Service, Wednesday ev'g	programme	June 29, 1887		Y	Y
London Tobogganing Club 1885-6; executive and rules	card	1885-6		Y	
Senator Leonard's will - estate of nearly \$300,000 divided between his wife and two sons	newspaper clipping			Y	
Eastern Townships farm for sale	newspaper clipping			Y	

Description	Туре	Date	Notes	Original	Сору
Arthur Helps - text on difference between men and women	newspaper clipping			Y	
Annie Pixley in play M'Liss, Child of the Sierras at the Grand Opera House on Friday evening	programme	May 14, 1886		Y	Y
Poster announcing to electors of Westminster Township addresses by Mr. Becher on Sept 2 and 5, 1862	broadside	1862		Y	Y
Poster giving catecism by Elijah Leonard on the Separate School Act, ca. 1862	broadside	1862		Y	Y
Election poster of P.G. Norris for alderman of Ward 7, London discussing issues including the London and Port Stanley Railway Co., Dec. 21, 1857	broadside	Dec 21, 1857	X2420 (copy in X1917- 18)	Y	Y
Poster announcing electors nomination of Thomas C. Dixon, Mayor of London as representative of Town, after John Wilson resigned, ca. 1849	broadside	1849	X2420 (copy in X1917- 18)	Y	Y
Advertisement for Fraser House, resort at Port Stanley, 1886	advertisement	1886	B1131 (orig from X1917-1918)	Y	